
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fairbanks

AGENDA September 02, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fairbanks

Presentation Tennessee Wildlife Resource Agency (TWRA) - Report on Deer at Nature Park - Ben Layton.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - August 12, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - August 12, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - August 19, 2015

Report Criminal Court Clerk's Report - June 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report - July 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - July 2015

Report Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - June 2015

Res. No. 915-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, the oaths of Deputy County Clerks, and the oaths of Deputy
Sheriffs.

Res. No. 915-2 A Resolution accepting the bid of Tennessee Waste Haulers, LLC for a one (1) year contract,
beginning September 7, 2015, through September 6, 2016, with the option to renew for two (2)
additional one (1) year terms, for the rental of one (1) self-contained compactor and disposal
services for the Sheriff’s Office and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-3 A Resolution to accept a continuation contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the State of
Tennessee’s Department of Human Services for a child support program for the period July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2016.

Res. No. 915-4 A Resolution accepting the bid of Divers Supply, Inc. for surface supplied air equipment
amounting to $29,584.81 for the Sheriff’s Office and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-5 A Resolution approving the expenditure of twelve thousand five hundred dollars ($12,500.00)
from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted to District Six) to assist the Town of Lookout
Mountain with the renovation of their pavilion and picnic area.

Res. No. 915-6 A Resolution approving the expenditure of six thousand twenty seven dollars ($6,027.00) from
discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Two) to assist with the cost of a parking lot for the
indoor batting facility at Signal Mountain Middle/High School.

Res. No. 915-7 A Resolution approving the expenditure of four thousand nine hundred sixty dollars ($4,960.00)
from discretionary bond funds (as allotted to District Two) to assist with a ceiling replacement on
property owned by the Town of Walden.

Res. No. 915-8 Resolution Number Not Used

Res. No. 915-9 A Resolution making an appropriation to Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga in the amount of Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted
to District Five.

Res. No. 915-10 A Resolution making an appropriation to Chattanooga Ballet, Inc., in the amount of One
Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Eight.

Res. No. 915-11 A Resolution making an appropriation to Sculpture Fields at Montague Park in the amount of Six
Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Eight.



Res. No. 915-12 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of July 1, 2015,
through July 31, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-13 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a contract in the amount of $8,010.00 with the Tennessee Department of Health to provide
Emergency Dental Care for uninsured adults ages 19 – 64 years for the time period July 1, 2015
through June 30, 2016.

Res. No. 915-14 A Resolution accepting the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern
Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials Company, Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and
Hiwassee Paving, LLC. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015,
through March 6, 2016, for asphalt road materials and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-15 A Resolution accepting the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, Dunlap
Stone, Inc., and Midsouth Aggregates for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September
7, 2015, through March 6, 2016, for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department, and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-16 A Resolution accepting the bids of Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and
Lambcon Ready Mix for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015 through
March 6, 2016, for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department, and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-17 A Resolution accepting the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie
Concrete Industries, Inc. for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015,
through March 6, 2016, for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department and to
authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-18 A Resolution accepting the bids of ProBuild and Sequatchie Concrete Service for six (6) months
contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015, through March 6, 2016, for bagged Portland
cement for the Highway Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 915-19 A Resolution to authorize the Hamilton County Board of Education to participate in the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System separately from Hamilton County, Tennessee, with
which it is currently associated, as provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 8-35-201.

Res. No. 915-20 A Resolution to adopt powers granted to Tennessee Counties pursuant to Tennessee Code
Annotated Section 5-1-118, et seq. (Also known as "The County General Powers Act"), and to
authorize Hamilton County to exercise certain powers granted to municipalities pursuant to
Tennessee Code Annotated Sections 6-2-201 (22) and (23) with respect to the regulation of
nuisances and other practices detrimental to the inhabitants of the County.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 12, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 12th day of August, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman, County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley introduced Pastor Bill Mason, Morris Hill Baptist Church, 

who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Smedley led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 

2 
 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business for the 

Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

     Respectfully submitted: 

      

     ______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 12, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 12th day of August, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 An Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report for June 2015 would be submitted for 
the record.  

 A Second Amended Trustee Excess Fee Report for June 2015 would be 
submitted for the record.  

 The Trustee’s Unaudited Financial Report  ending June 30, 2015 would be 
submitted for the record.  

 The Trustee’s 2014 Unpaid Property Tax Levy Report would be submitted for the 
record.  

 Quarterly Fee Office Reports for the period ending June 30, 2015 would be 
submitted for the record.  

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 Resolution No. 815-34 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution Nos. 815-38, 815-39, and 815-43 through 815-45 were assigned to 
the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 

 Resolution Nos. 815-40 and 815-46 were not used.  
 Resolution Nos. 815-35 through 815-37, 815-41, 815-42, and 815-47 were heard 

by a Committee of the Whole. 
 

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution Nos. Resolution Nos. 815-35 through 

815-37, 815-41, 815-42, and 815-47 would now be heard by the Committee of the 

Whole. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 3

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-35 

 

This Resolution reappoints Leroy Grant and Lamar McDaniel to the Hamilton 

County Industrial Development Board for a six-year term beginning August 19, 2015 

and ending August 19, 2021.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-36 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which reappoints Dean Moorehouse 

to the Hamilton County Beer Board for a three-year term ending August 15, 2018. He 

added that Mr. Moorehouse has been a stellar performer on the board and asked that 

the Commission confirm his reappointment.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 4

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-37 

  

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which reappoints Deborah Noel-

Maddox, Greather Tinker, and Heather Bruggink to the Scenic Cities Beautiful 

Commission for three-year terms ending August 17, 2018. It was noted that the board 

uses grant money to make improvements in Hamilton County.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-41 

  

Commissioner Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $4,000 to 

the Soil Conservation District from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 

District 9. The Soil Conservation District is a sponsor of the annual Tennessee 

Association of Conservation Districts Convention in Chattanooga. Commissioner 

Bankston added the funds would be used to assist with the cost of the Convention.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Albert Kiser, administrator of 

finance, noted that the Soil Conservation District was allotted $120,635 in the 2015 -

2016 budget.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 5

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-42 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which authorizes the 

reimbursement of $22,370 from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District 4, to the 

Hamilton County Department of Education for a sign at Brown Middle School.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 815-47 

  

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which would approve an Interlocal 

agreement between Hamilton County and the City of East Ridge for the partial funding 

of certain infrastructure improvements to be made at and around the exit one 

interchange of Interstate 75. It was noted these improvements would assist in facilitating 

Bass Pro Shoppe and other major commercial development that is in negotiation for the 

area. Mayor Coppinger added that Bass Pro Shoppe will be investing more than $25 

million dollars and will employ more than 200 people.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 6

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mayor Coppinger clarified that 

Hamilton County and the City of East Ridge would be investing up to one million dollars 

of their respective funds over the next two fiscal years (2016 and 2017). The County 

would be investing up to $500,000 on Phase One of the project, which would make 

improvements around Camp Jordan Road in East Ridge, and up to $500,000 on Phase 

Two of the project at Exit One.  

 

 Commissioner Graham added that Hamilton County would see a one hundred 

percent return on the investment within two to four years. He specified that the Interlocal 

Agreement was not a PILOT agreement. He also pointed out that the school system 

would benefit from the increase in sales tax and property tax. Commissioner Graham 

added that he was in favor of the investment and would be supporting this Resolution.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Mayor of East Ridge, Brent 

Lambert, and Marc Gravitt, Vice Mayor of East Ridge and a State Representative, 

explained that they had worked with an engineering firm and TDOT to get a cost 

analysis, and did not anticipate the need for additional funding to complete the project.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley thanked  Mayor Lambert and Representative Gravitt for 

being at today’s meeting. She added that this development would significantly boost 

property values in the East Ridge area.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 7

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Mayor Lambert clarified that the 

Bass Pro Shoppe construction project should be completed in late spring or early 

summer of 2016.  

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately after the 

Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Boyd thanked members of the Commission for their consideration 

in the East Ridge development project. He also thanked developers John Healey and 

the Wood brothers, Mayor Lambert, and Representative Gravitt for their hard work on 

making the project become a reality.  

 

Mayor Coppinger reminded members of the Commission of the Memorial at the 

McKenzie Arena honoring the five service members that were killed in Chattanooga on 

July 16th. It was noted that Vice President Joe Biden would be attending the memorial, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

AUGUST 12, 2015 
 
 

 8

as well as many other elected officials. The service will take place Saturday, August 

15th at 2:00 pm and is open to the public.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, August 19th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

________  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  August 19, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 19th day of August, 2015, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Smedley introduced Mitch McClure, Pastor of Middle Valley 

Church of God and former County Commissioner, who gave the invocation. Pastor 

McClure asked everyone to continue to pray for the families of the fallen soldiers that 

were affected by the July 16th attacks. He also invited everyone to the groundbreaking 

ceremony of the new Dallas Bay #2 fire hall scheduled for September 17th at 10:00 am.  

Commissioner Smedley led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of July 29, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of July 29, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of August 5, 2015, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

3 

 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

TRUSTEE’S AMENDED REPORTS 

 

The Trustee’s amended and second amended excess fee reports for June 2015 

were submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

TRUSTEE’S UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s unaudited financial report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 was 

submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

TRUSTEE’S UNPAID REAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY 

 

The Trustee’s 2014 unpaid real property tax levy was submitted and made a 

matter of record. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

4 

 

FEE OFFICE REPORTS 

 

Fee reports for the following constitutional officers were submitted as a matter of 

record: 

Clerk & Master – April 2015 through June 2015 
Circuit Court Clerk – April 2015 through June 2015 
Register of Deeds – April 2015 through June 2015 
County Clerk – April 2015 through June 2015 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of August 

10, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-34  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK, 

AND TO FILE THE BONDS OF SOUTHEAST TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-34. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

5 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution Nos. 815-35 through 815-37, 815-41, 

815-42, and 815-47 were heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-35  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT TWO MEMBERS TO 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD TO SERVE A SIX 

(6) YEAR TERM BEGINNING AUGUST 19, 2015 AND ENDING AUGUST 19, 2021. 

 

 This resolution reappoints Leroy Grant and Lamar McDaniel to the Hamilton 

County Industrial Development Board for terms ending August 19, 2021. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, 

to adopt Resolution No. 815-35. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

6 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-36  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BEER 

BOARD WITH TERM EXPIRING AUGUST 15, 2018. 

 

This resolution reappoints Dean Moorehouse to the Hamilton County Beer Board 

for a term ending August 15, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-36. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

7 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-37  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF THREE MEMBERS TO THE SCENIC CITIES 

BEAUTIFUL COMMISSION WITH TERMS ENDING AUGUST 17, 2018. 

 

This resolution reappoints Deborah Noel-Maddox, Greather Tinker, and Heather 

Bruggink for terms ending August 17, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-37. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

8 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-40 WAS NOT USED. 

 

Chairman Fields noted that Resolution No. 815-40 was not used. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-41  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY SOIL CONSERVATION DISTRICT IN THE AMOUNT OF FOUR 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-41. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was  adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

9 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Nay”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8. Total “Nay” 

votes – 1. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-42  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REIMBURSEMENT 

OF TWENTY TWO THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY DOLLARS ($22, 

370.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT 

FOUR) TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FOR A SIGN 

AT BROWN MIDDLE SCHOOL. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-42. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

10 

 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-46 WAS NOT USED. 

 

Chairman Fields noted that Resolution No. 815-46 was not used. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-47  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENTERING INTO OF 

AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

AND THE CITY OF EAST RIDGE, TENNESSEE FOR THE PARTIAL FUNDING OF 

CERTAIN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE MADE AT AND AROUND 

THE EXIT ONE INTERCHANGE OF INTERSTATE 75, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL AGREEMENTS NECESSARY 

THERETO. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-47. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

11 

 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 815-38, 815-39, and 815-43 through 

815-45 be considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-38  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE “2015 JUSTICE 

ASSISTANCE GRANT” WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 

AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET BY $39, 914. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-39  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID FROM GT 

DISTRIBUTORS OF GEORGIA, INC. FOR NEW GLOCK 22-GEN 4 WEAPONS VIA A 

WEAPONS EXCHANGE PROGRAM FOR THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-43  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHIELDS 

ELECTRONICS SUPPLY, INC. AND COMMUNICATIONS SUPPLY CORPORATION 

FOR A SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING AUGUST 19, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

12 

 

2015, THROUGH FEBRUARY 18, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR SIX (6) 

ADDITIONAL MONTHS, FOR COMMUNICATIONS CABLE FOR THE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-44  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 

CHATTANOOGA TRACTOR AND EQUIPMENT FOR ONE (1) COMPACT TRACTOR 

WITH FRONT END LOADER AND BACKHOE AMOUNTING TO $29, 900.00 FOR 

THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 815-45  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF ASA 

ENGINEERING AND CONSULTING, INC. TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION 

ENGINEERING INSPECTION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF OOLTEWAH-

RINGGOLD ROAD AND STANDIFER GAP ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

AND FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND EAST 

BRAINERD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $349, 

615.74. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

13 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 815-38, 815-

39, 815-43 through 815-45 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. He requested that Resolution No. 815-45 be voted on 

separately. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 815-38, 815-39, 815-43, and 815-44. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any further discussion. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

In anticipation of comments and questions arising about yesterday’s incident in 

General Sessions Court Commissioner Beck requested that Sheriff Jim Hammond 

remain present during the duration of the meeting.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

14 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 815-45. 

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion. 

 

Commissioner Boyd pointed out that the engineering fees for the two East 

Brainerd road improvement projects were approximately 20% of the total cost of the 

improvements. He added that standard engineering fees for these types of projects 

range between 4% and 12%.  It was noted that the fees are calculated based on time 

and materials needed. Commissioner Boyd stated that he would be supporting the 

Resolution. In closing, he reiterated that the purpose of his comments was to make the 

Commission aware of the exorbitant fees 

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Todd Leamon, Administrator 

of Public Works and County Engineer, explained that there has been an increase in 

construction costs over the last several months. 

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Commissioner Boyd stated that 

the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) is not required to bid out 

professional services for these types of projects. He added that the County and the 

engineering department do not have much control over the state’s contracting process, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

15 

 

and he will continue to look into the amount being paid to ASA Engineering and 

Consulting.  

 

Commissioner Mackey suggested that voting on Resolution No. 815-45 be 

delayed until further investigation is completed. 

 

Commissioner Smedley requested that the Commission move forward with 

voting on Resolution No. 815-45. She explained that she receives calls weekly from 

constituents about the dangerous intersections. She went on to say that both of these 

projects are much needed and long overdue. 

 

Commissioner Graham added that Finance Committee reviewed this Resolution 

thoroughly after last week’s Agenda Session. He reiterated Commissioner Boyd’s point 

that the County has little control over the engineering fees. He added that he 

appreciated Commissioner Boyd investigating the situation further, but the Commission 

should not wait to vote on the projects. 

 

Commissioner Beck called for the question.  Commissioner Mackey seconded.  

There being no further discussion, Chairman Fields asked the Clerk to call the roll on 

the Motion to adopt the resolution. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

16 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Boyd began by thanking the Commission and the County Mayor 

for their support of the improvements at Exit 1 in East Ridge. He also spoke about the 

soccer game between the World Champion U.S. Women’s National Team and Costa 

Rica, taking place today at Finley Stadium, 6:30 p.m. He encouraged everyone to be 

safe and patient at the event. 

 

Commissioner Boyd also reminded members of the Commission and the 

audience about the community meeting called by Carol Berz, Chairman of the City 

Council, on August 28th at The Pointe at the University of Phoenix.  He indicated there 

would be exciting announcements regarding District 8 projects made at that meeting. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

17 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about meeting with the wife, Angie Smith, and three 

children of Petty Officer 2nd Class Randall Smith, one of the five service members killed 

during the July 16th Navy Operational Support Center shootings in Chattanooga. He 

emotionally described the experience and personally thanked everyone who assisted in 

facilitating the Memorial Service held Saturday, August 15th. 

 

Vice President of the United States Joe Biden, United States Secretary of 

Defense Ash Carter, and the United States Secretary of the Navy were principal 

speakers at the Memorial attended by family members of the deceased and the general 

public.   

 

The lives of Gunnery Sergeant Thomas Sullivan, Staff Sergeant David Wyatt, 

Sergeant Carson Holmquist, Petty Officer 2nd Class Randall Smith, and Lance Corporal 

Squire K. Wells were honored with military traditions. 

 

 

Several Commissioners spoke about attending the Memorial Service that was 

held at the McKenzie Arena. They specifically mentioned the Roll Call of the heroes as 

a solemn part of the memorial. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

18 

 

Commissioner Graham announced that a young man in his district was afforded 

the opportunity to board Vice President Joe Biden’s presidential airplane on Saturday to 

deliver lunch from Hillbilly Willy’s, a barbeque restaurant in Lookout Valley where he 

works. 

 

Commissioner Graham spoke of recent newspaper articles quoting student 

population numbers. He asked the Education Committee to look into the accuracy of 

said figures as they didn’t correspond with the numbers he had received from the State.  

 

Mayor Coppinger reminded the Commission about an employee benefits meeting 

taking place after the August 26th Agenda Session.  

 

Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Beck spoke regarding a fight that broke 

out yesterday during a murder hearing in Judge Gary Starnes General Sessions 

courtroom. They each voiced their support for video hearings and encouraged the 

Commission to move forward with implementing video conferencing capabilities.  

 

Mayor Coppinger recognized that Marc Gravitt, Vice Mayor of East Ridge and 

State Representative, was in the audience. The Mayor responded to the concerns about 

incorporating video hearings in Hamilton County courtrooms.  It was noted that in order 

to allow video conferencing in Sessions Court, legislation would need to be changed. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 19, 2015 
 

19 

 

Mr. Gravitt added that he would be happy to sponsor legislation regarding video 

conferencing. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

 Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, August 26, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

Approved: 
 
 

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 
 





























No. 915-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF DEPUTY 
COUNTY CLERKS, AND THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS.  

 
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 
COUNTY CLERKS" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS" have taken the oath of office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants 
therefore; and 
 



 

 

2.  That persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
approved as taken; and 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

COUNTY CLERKS” is accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; 
and  

 
4. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and 
 
5. That each such person named on the listings hereinabove mentioned (which 

listings are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby 
deemed to have been individually considered according to the particular matter 
relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT  
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 









































No. 915-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TENNESSEE WASTE HAULERS, LLC FOR A ONE 
(1) YEAR CONTRACT, BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2016, 
WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERMS, FOR 
THE RENTAL OF ONE (1) SELF-CONTAINED COMPACTOR AND DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR 
THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) self-contained 

compactor and disposal services for the jail; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Tennessee Waste Haulers, LLC was considered to be the lowest and best 

bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Tennessee Waste Haulers, LLC for a one (1) year contract, beginning September 7, 
2015, through September 6, 2016, with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms, 
for the rental of one (1) self-contained compactor and disposal services for the Sheriff’s Office is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 915-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A CONTINUATION CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE STATE OF TENNESSEE’S DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN 
SERVICES FOR A CHILD SUPPORT PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2015 
THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services established a Child Support 
Program to comply with the requirements of the Title IV-D of the Social Security Act, as 
enacted by Congress in 1973; 
  
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services is entering into a contract with the 
Sheriff’s Office for performing service of all IV-D related process papers and attachments 
properly issued by Tennessee Judicial Authorities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services has agreed to pay $205,101 (or 
66%) of the total cost of $310,759; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office has already budgeted for it’s required match of $105,658 (or 
34%) of the total cost of $310,759. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The contract is approved and accepted between the Sheriff’s Office and the State of Tennessee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 915-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF DIVERS SUPPLY, INC. FOR SURFACE 
SUPPLIED AIR EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING TO $29,584.81 FOR THE SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for surface supplied 

air equipment for the Sheriff’s Office; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Divers Supply, Inc. amounting to $29,584.81 was the considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid from Divers Supply, Inc. for surface supplied air equipment amounting to 
$29,584.81 for the Sheriff’s Office is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























No. 915-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF TWELVE THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($12,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES (AS 
ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SIX) TO ASSIST THE TOWN OF LOOKOUT MOUNTAIN WITH 
THE RENOVATION OF THEIR PAVILION AND PICNIC AREA. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Lookout Mountain is in need of renovating their pavilion and picnic area; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, County Commissioner Joe Graham has expressed a desire to use Twelve Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($12,500.00) of General Fund discretionary monies allotted to District 
Six to assist with the renovation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($12,500.00) from General Fund 
discretionary monies (as allotted to District Six) be approved to assist with the renovation of the Town 
of Lookout Mountain’s pavilion and picnic area. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 915-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF SIX THOUSAND TWENTY SEVEN 
DOLLARS ($6,027.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT 
TWO) TO ASSIST WITH THE COST OF A PARKING LOT FOR THE INDOOR BATTING 
FACILITY AT SIGNAL MOUNTAIN MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOL. 
 
WHEREAS, Signal Mountain Middle/High School had a need for a parking lot to support their indoor 

batting facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, County Commissioner James Fields has expressed his desire to use Six Thousand 

Twenty Seven Dollars ($6,027.00) from Discretionary Bond Funds allotted to District 
Two to assist with the cost of the parking lot; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Six Thousand Twenty Seven Dollars ($6,027.00) from Discretionary Bond 
Funds allotted to District Two be approved to assist with the cost of a parking lot for the indoor batting 
facility at Signal Mountain Middle/High School. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 915-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED 
SIXTY DOLLARS ($4,960.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT TWO) TO ASSIST WITH A CEILING REPLACEMENT ON PROPERTY OWNED BY 
THE TOWN OF WALDEN. 
 
WHEREAS, the McCoy farmhouse, owned by the Town of Walden and used for community 

recreation, is in need of renovation; and 
 
WHEREAS, County Commissioner James Fields has expressed a desire to use Four Thousand Nine 

Hundred Sixty Dollars ($4,960.00) from Discretionary Bond Funds allotted to District 
Two to cover the cost of a ceiling replacement at the farmhouse; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Four Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Dollars ($4,960.00) from Discretionary 
Bond Funds (as allotted to District Two) be approved to cover the cost of a ceiling replacement at the 
McCoy farmhouse, owned by the Town of Walden. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.   
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 915-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO GIRLS INCORPORATED OF 
CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FIVE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to 
District Five, to Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga to assist with summer camp 
scholarships; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as 
allotted to District Five, be appropriated to Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga to assist with summer 
camp scholarships. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 



 

 

Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 915-10 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO CHATTANOOGA BALLET, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($1,750.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Seven 

Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750.00) from General Fund discretionary monies (as allotted 
to District Eight) to Chattanooga Ballet, Inc., to assist with costumes for the Nutcracker 
Ballet; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That One Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750.00) from General Fund discretionary monies 
be appropriated to Chattanooga Ballet, Inc., to assist with costumes for the Nutcracker Ballet. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 915-11 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SCULPTURE FIELDS AT MONTAGUE 
PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sculpture Fields at Montague Park is erecting a sculpture commemorating the 

servicemen who lost their lives on July 16, 2015, at the Naval Reserve Center on 
Amnicola Highway in Chattanooga; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Six Thousand Dollars 

($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Eight, to 
assist with the purchase of materials for the sculpture; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 
Eight, be appropriated to Sculpture Fields at Montague Park to assist with the purchase of materials for 
a sculpture commemorating the servicemen who lost their lives on July 16, 2015, at the Naval Reserve 
Center on Amnicola Highway in Chattanooga. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 



 

 

copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 













No. 915-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2015, THROUGH JULY 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between July 1, 2015, through July 31, 2015.  
 
 July 2, 2015, $13,884.42 for 7,428 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.8692 per gallon from 

Pilot Travel Centers, LLC.  
 
 July 2, 2015, $14,015.27 for 7,498 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.8692 per gallon from 

Pilot Travel Centers, LLC.  
 
 July 6, 2015, $14,524.41 for 7,378 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.968611 per gallon from 

Parman Products, LLC.  
 
 July 6, 2015, $13,860.85 for 7,435 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.86427 per gallon from 

Parman Products, LLC.  
  
 July 7, 2015, $2024.10 for 900 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.2490 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 July 7, 2015, 378.00 for 200 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.8900 per gallon from Jat Oil and 

Supply, Inc. 
 
 July 7, 2015, $899.60 for 400 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.2490 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 July 7, 2015, $399.16 for 191 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 2.08984 per gallon from Jat 

Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
  



 

 

 
 July 7, 2015, $522.51 for 250 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.09004 per gallon from Jat Oil 

and Supply, Inc.  
 
  July 14, 2015, $14,851.52 for 8,359 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 1.77671 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 July 14, 2015, $1,641.50 for 700 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.3450 per 

gallon from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 July 22, 2015, $7,053.30 for 3,444 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.0479965 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 July 23, 2015, $12,496.41 for 7,412 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.68597 per gallon from 

Parman Lubricants. 
 
 July 24, 2015, $12,668.96 for 7,673 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 1.651109 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 July 27, 2015, $13,740.60 for 8,359 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 1.643809 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 July 31, 2015, $2,062.30 for 1,006 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.0500 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 July 31, 2015, $12,902.83 for 7,818 gallons of E-10 gasoline at 1.6504 per gallon from 

Sweetwater Valley Oil Co., Inc. 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 915- 13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $8,010.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO 
PROVIDE EMERGENCY DENTAL CARE FOR UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 – 64 YEARS 
FOR THE TIME  PERIOD JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, poor oral health has been linked to detrimental chronic health conditions; and                                                  
 
WHEREAS, many adults are without adequate dental insurance to cover the expense of 

emergency dental care; and  
 
WHEREAS, the State has identified funds to provide support for adult emergency dental 

care in certain health facilities in Tennessee; and 
 
WHEREAS, this program and services is for the health and well-being of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the amount of  
$8,010.00 for the time period of July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















































No. 915-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF TALLEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. dba 
SOUTHEASTERN MATERIALS, INC., HUDSON MATERIALS COMPANY, BLACKLIDGE 
EMULSIONS, INC., DUNLAP STONE, INC. AND HIWASSEE PAVING, LLC. FOR SIX (6) 
MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015, THROUGH MARCH 6, 
2016, FOR ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months contract 

pricing for asphalt road materials for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern Materials, Inc., 

Hudson Materials Company, Blacklidge Emulsions Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and 
Hiwassee Paving, LLC were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Talley Construction Company, Inc. dba Southeastern Materials, Inc., Hudson Materials 
Company, Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Dunlap Stone, Inc. and Hiwassee Paving, LLC for six months 
contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015, through March 6, 2016, for asphalt road materials for 
the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























No. 915-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS, VULCAN 
MATERIALS COMPANY, DUNLAP STONE, INC., AND MIDSOUTH AGGREGATES FOR SIX 
(6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015, THROUGH MARCH 6, 
2016, FOR CRUSHED STONE AND SAND FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, Dunlap Stone, 

Inc.,  and  Midsouth Aggregates were considered to be the lowest and best bids 
received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Martin Marietta Materials, Vulcan Materials Company, Dunlap Stone, Inc., and 
Midsouth Aggregates for six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015, through March 
6, 2016, for crushed stone and sand for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being 
the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























No. 915-16 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE SERVICE, INC., TNT 
CONCRETE, LLC AND LAMBCON READY MIX FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, 
BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015 THROUGH MARCH 6, 2016, FOR READY MIX CONCRETE 
FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for ready mix concrete for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and Lambcon 

Ready Mix were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Sequatchie Concrete Service, Inc., TNT Concrete, LLC and Lambcon Ready Mix for 
six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015, through March 6, 2016, for ready mix 
concrete for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 























No. 915-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CONTECH ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, LLC, 
AND SHERMAN DIXIE CONCRETE INDUSTRIES, INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT 
PRICING, BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015, THROUGH MARCH 6, 2016, FOR CONCRETE 
AND METAL CULVERT FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for six months contract pricing 

for concrete and metal culvert for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie Concrete 

Industries, Inc. were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC, and Sherman Dixie Concrete Industries, Inc. for 
six (6) months contract pricing, beginning September 7, 2015, through March 6, 201, for concrete and 
metal culvert for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 915-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF PROBUILD AND SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE 
SERVICE FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 7, 2015, 
THROUGH MARCH 6, 2016, FOR BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT FOR THE HIGHWAY 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for six (6) months contract 

pricing for bagged Portland cement for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from ProBuild and Sequatchie Concrete Service were considered to be the 

lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of ProBuild and Sequatchie Concrete Services for six (6) months contract pricing, 
beginning September 7, 2015, through March 6, 2016, for bagged Portland cement for the Highway 
Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 























No. 915-19 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM SEPARATELY FROM 
HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, WITH WHICH IT IS CURRENTLY ASSOCIATED, AS PROVIDED 
IN TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-35-201. 
 
WHEREAS,  Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 8, Chapter 35, Part 2 allows a local board of education to 

participate in the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (“TCRS”) separately from the 
political subdivision with which it is associated subject to the approval of the TCRS Board of 
Trustees and subject to the passage of a resolution by the political subdivision accepting the 
financial responsibility for the liabilities associated with the board of education’s participation in 
TCRS; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Board of Education (“Board of Education”) currently participates in the TCRS 

regular defined benefit plan through Hamilton County, Tennessee (the “Political Subdivision”); and 
 
WHEREAS,  the governing body of the Board of Education has passed a resolution to participate in the TCRS 

regular defined benefit plan separately from the Political Subdivision effective October 1, 2015 
(“Effective Date”) and in accordance with its existing terms and conditions as set forth below: 

 
A. ASSUMPTION OF EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS.  (CHECK BOX 1 OR BOX 2 OR BOX 3).  The Board 

of Education shall: 
 

(1) [   ] NOT assume any employee contributions. 
(2) [   ] ASSUME 2.5% of its employees’ contributions. 
(3) [X] ASSUME 5.0% of its employees’ contributions. 

 
B. COST-OF-LIVING INCREASES FOR RETIREES.  (CHECK BOX 1 OR BOX 2).  The Board of Education 

shall: 
 

(1) [   ] NOT provide cost-of-living increases for its retirees. 
(2) [X] PROVIDE cost-of-living increases for its retirees. 

 
C. ELIGIBILITY OF PART-TIME EMPLOYEES.  (CHECK BOX 1 OR BOX 2).  The Board of Education 

shall: 

(1) [X] NOT allow its part-time employees to participate in TCRS. 
(2) [   ] ALLOW its part-time employees to participate in TCRS;  and 
 
 

 



 

 

WHEREAS,  commencing on the Effective Date, the Board of Education shall participate in TCRS separately 
from the Political Subdivision, and in accordance with the above terms and conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the liability for participation and costs of administration shall be the sole responsibility of the Board 

of Education and the Political Subdivision, and not the State of Tennessee. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Board of Education to participate in 
TCRS separately from the Political Subdivision and in accordance with the above terms and conditions, or under 
such other terms and conditions the governing body of the Board of Education may adopt pursuant to the laws 
governing TCRS; provided, however, this governing body must approve by resolution any such action that would 
increase the liabilities of either the Board of Education or the Political Subdivision.  It is acknowledged and 
understood that pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 8-35-111 neither the Board of Education nor the 
Political Subdivision shall  make employer contributions to any other retirement or deferred compensation plans 
on behalf of any employee who participates in TCRS pursuant to this Resolution wherein the total combined 
employer contributions to such plans exceed 3% of the employee’s salary. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THIS THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 915-20 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
September 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THOSE POWERS GRANTED TO TENNESSEE COUNTIES PURSUANT 
TO TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 5-1-118, et seq. (ALSO KNOWN AS “THE COUNTY 
GENERAL POWERS ACT”), AND TO AUTHORIZE HAMILTON COUNTY TO EXERCISE 
CERTAIN POWERS GRANTED TO MUNICIPALITIES PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE 
ANNOTATED SECTIONS 6-2-201(22) AND (23) WITH RESPECT TO THE REGULATION OF 
NUISANCES AND OTHER PRACTICES DETRIMENTAL TO THE INHABITANTS OF THE 
COUNTY. 
 

WHEREAS,   the General Assembly adopted the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 5-
1-118, et seq. to allow Tennessee counties to exercise certain powers granted to the 
municipalities within this State by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of their respective county 
legislative body/ and  

 
WHEREAS, said legislation further expands the ability of counties to exercise certain municipal 

powers in relation to the regulation of nuisances and other practices detrimental to the 
inhabitants of the county as outlined in T.C.A. §6-2-201(22) and (23); and,  

 
WHEREAS,   this county legislative body has determined that it would be beneficial to the 

inhabitants of the county for Hamilton County to adopt said regulatory authorities and 
general police powers; and,  

 
WHEREAS,   said T.C.A. Section 5-1-118 requires that the county legislative body of any county 

desiring to exercise the powers authorized in subsection (a)  must adopt a resolution so 
declaring same, and additionally must adopt any of the other regulations therein 
authorized in subsection (c)(1) by a two-thirds (2/3) majority. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, does hereby adopt those provisions of Tennessee Code  
Annotated Section 5-1-118(a), which grants unto adopting counties within the State of 
Tennessee, certain powers specifically granted to municipalities within this State. 
 
The provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 5-1-118(c) are likewise hereby  
adopted wherein this County is authorized to exercise those powers granted to  
municipalities pursuant to T.C.A. § 6-2-201(22) and (23); such powers being described  
by law as the ability to define, prohibit, abate, suppress, prevent and regulate all acts,  



 

 

practices, conduct, businesses, occupations, callings, trades, uses of property and all other  
things whatsoever detrimental, or liable to be detrimental, to the health, morals, comfort,  
safety, convenience or welfare of the people as may lawfully be established, conducted or 
maintained. 

 
The exercise of such powers by Hamilton County shall be in accordance with all limitations as 
provided in T.C.A. § 5-1-118, et seq.; that such authority shall only be exercised in the 
unincorporated areas of Hamilton County, and shall not apply to those activities, businesses or 
uses of property and business occupations and practices which are exempted from regulation by 
T.C.A. § 5-1-118(c)(2). 

 
  Any and all court decisions and statutory laws relating to variances and non- 

conforming uses which are applicable to zoning ordinances and land use controls shall also 
apply to the enforcement and exercise of the powers granted by T.C.A. § 5-1-118(c); and that 
the enforcement and exercise of these powers by Hamilton County is limited by the provisions 
of the Constitution of the State of Tennessee and the Unites States Constitution. 

 
That subsequent to the effective date of this resolution, any additional regulations in accordance 
with the authority granted under T.C.A. § 5-1-118, et seq., shall be passed by a two-thirds (2/3) 
majority of this county legislative body. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

September 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 


	9-2-15 Public Agenda
	915-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - August 12, 2015 _1785_08-12-15 Recessed
	915-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - August 12, 2015 _1786_08-12-15 Agenda
	915-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - August 19, 2015 _1787_08-19-15 Regular
	915-_S_Report_Criminal Court Clerk's Report - June 2015_1769_Criminal Court Clerk Report
	915-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report July 2015_1783_July 2015 Monthly
	915-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - July 2015_1784_July 2015 Excess Fee
	915-_S_Report_Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - June 2015_1795_Juvenile Court Clerks Report - June 2015
	915-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1788_09-02-15
	915-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1788_09-02-15A
	915-2_R_Sheriff Hammond_Compactor and disposal services for the Jail_1774_RES. COMPACTOR FOR JAIL
	915-2_S_Sheriff Hammond_Compactor and disposal services for the Jail_1774_Compactor & disposal services
	915-3_R_Sheriff Hammond_Approval of grant contract_1780_STATE OF TENNESSEE
	915-4_R_Sheriff Hammond_Surface Supplied Air Equipment_1781_RES. SURFACE SUPPLIED AIR EQUIPMENT
	915-4_S_Sheriff Hammond_Surface Supplied Air Equipment_1781_Surface Supplied Air Equipment
	915-5_R_Commissioner Graham_Renovation of the pavilion and picnic area located in the Town of Lookout Mountain_1771_CommGrahamTown ofLM
	915-6_R_Commissioner Fields_Parking Lot for the Signal Mountain Middle High School batting facility_1772_CommFields Parking Lot
	915-7_R_Commissioner Fields_Ceiling replacement on property owned by the Town of Walden_1773_CommFields CeilingReplace
	915-9_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga for Summer Camp Scholarships_1789_Comm Beck Girls Inc
	915-9_S_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga for Summer Camp Scholarships_1789_0392_001
	915-10_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Chattanooga Ballet from General Fund discretionary monies requested by Commissioner Tim Boyd_1767_CommBoydChattBallet
	915-10_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Chattanooga Ballet from General Fund discretionary monies requested by Commissioner Tim Boyd_1767_0312_001
	915-11_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Sculpture Fields at Montague Park_1790_Comm Boyd Sculpture
	915-11_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Sculpture Fields at Montague Park_1790_0393_001
	915-12_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel July 2013_1770_Fuel Resolution July 2015
	915-12_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel July 2013_1770_Fuel Resolution July 2015 supporting docs
	915-13_R_Becky Barnes_Emergency Dental Care Safety Net_1782_Resolution Emergency Dental Safety Net 2016
	915-13_S_Becky Barnes_Emergency Dental Care Safety Net_1782_Emergency Dental Care 2016
	915-14_R_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_1775_RES. ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS
	915-14_S_Todd Leamon_Asphalt Road Materials Contract_1775_Asphalt Road Materials
	915-15_R_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_1776_RES. STONE & SAND
	915-15_S_Todd Leamon_Crushed Stone and Sand Contract_1776_Crushed Stone & Sand Contract
	915-16_R_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_1777_RES. READY MIX CONCRETE CONTRACT
	915-16_S_Todd Leamon_Ready Mix Concrete Contract_1777_Ready Mix Concrete Contract
	915-17_R_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_1778_RES. CULVERT CONTRACT
	915-17_S_Todd Leamon_Concrete and Metal Culvert Contract_1778_Concrete & Metal Culvert
	915-18_R_Todd Leamon_Bagged Portland Cement Contract_1779_RES. BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT CONTRACT
	915-18_S_Todd Leamon_Bagged Portland Cement Contract_1779_Bagged Portland Cement Contract
	915-19_R_Christie Jordan_The Board of Education would like to participate in TCRS separately from Hamilton County Tennessee_1791_HCDE retirement
	915-19_S_Christie Jordan_The Board of Education would like to participate in TCRS separately from Hamilton County Tennessee_1791_2015_08_21_12_21_35
	915-20_R_Rheubin Taylor_County General Powers Act re nuisances_1797_County General Powers Act - Template

